
Committee Agenda   
 

1 

 

 
Area Planning Subcommittee West 
Wednesday, 11th May, 2011 
 
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, High Street, Epping 
  
Room: Council Chamber  
  
Time: 7.30 pm 
  
Democratic Services 
Officer 

Mark Jenkins - The Office of the Chief Executive 
Email: mjenkins@eppingforestdc.gov.uk Tel: 01992 564607 

 
 
Members: 
 
Councillors J Wyatt (Chairman), Mrs R Gadsby (Vice-Chairman), R Bassett, Mrs P Brooks, 
J Collier, D C Johnson, Ms Y  Knight, Mrs J Lea, W Pryor, Mrs M Sartin, Mrs P Smith, 
Ms S Stavrou, A Watts and Mrs E Webster 
 
 
PLEASE NOTE THAT MEMBERS RE-ELECTED BEFORE THIS MEETING BEGINS WILL 

NEED TO SIGN THEIR DECLRATION OF ACCEPTANCE OF OFFICE BEFORE 
PARTICIPATING IN ANY DECISION MAKING 

 
A BRIEFING FOR THE CHAIRMAN, VICE-CHAIRMAN AND 

APPOINTED SPOKESPERSONS WILL BE HELD AT 7.00 P.M. IN 
COMMITTEE ROOM 1 ON THE DAY OF THE SUB-COMMITTEE. 

 
 
WEBCASTING NOTICE 
 
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the 
Council's internet site - at the start of the meeting the Chairman will confirm if all or 
part of the meeting is being filmed.  
 
You should be aware that the Council is a Data Controller under the Data Protection 
Act. Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the 
Council’s published policy and copies made available to those that request it. 
 
Therefore by entering the Chamber and using the lower public seating area, you are 
consenting to being filmed and to the possible use of those images and sound 
recordings for web casting and/or training purposes. If members of the public do not 
wish to have their image captured they should sit in the upper council chamber public 
gallery area 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 11 May 2011 
 

2 

If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Senior Democratic Services 
Officer on 01992 564249. 
 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 11 May 2011 
 

3 

 1. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION   
 

  1. This meeting is to be webcast. Members are reminded of the need to activate 
their microphones before speaking.  
 
2. The Chairman will read the following announcement: 
 
“I would like to remind everyone present that this meeting will be broadcast live to the 
Internet and will be capable of repeated viewing and copies of the recording could be 
made available for those that request it. 
 
If you are seated in the lower public seating area it is likely that the recording cameras 
will capture your image and this will result in the possibility that your image will 
become part of the broadcast. 
 
This may infringe your human and data protection rights and if you wish to avoid this 
you should move to the upper public gallery” 
 

 2. ADVICE TO PUBLIC AND SPEAKERS AT COUNCIL PLANNING 
SUBCOMMITTEES  (Pages 7 - 8) 

 
  General advice to people attending the meeting is attached. 

 
 3. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE   

 
 4. MINUTES  (Pages 9 - 16) 

 
  To confirm the minutes of the last meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 13 April 

2011 as a correct record (attached). 
 

 5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

  (Assistant to the Chief Executive) To declare interests in any item on this agenda. 
 

 6. ANY OTHER BUSINESS   
 

  Section 100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972, together with paragraphs 6 and 
25 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution requires that the 
permission of the Chairman be obtained, after prior notice to the Chief Executive, 
before urgent business not specified in the agenda (including a supplementary agenda 
of which the statutory period of notice has been given) may be transacted. 
 
In accordance with Operational Standing Order 6 (non-executive bodies), any item 
raised by a non-member shall require the support of a member of the Committee 
concerned and the Chairman of that Committee.  Two weeks' notice of non-urgent 
items is required. 
 

 7. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  (Pages 17 - 36) 
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development)  To consider the planning 
applications set out in the attached schedule 
 
Background Papers  
(i)   Applications for determination – applications listed on the schedule, letters of 
representation received regarding the applications which are summarised on the 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 11 May 2011 
 

4 

schedule.   
 
(ii)   Enforcement of Planning Control – the reports of officers inspecting the 
properties listed on the schedule in respect of which consideration is to be given to the 
enforcement of planning control. 
 

 8. DELEGATED DECISIONS   
 

  (Director of Planning and Economic Development) Schedules of planning applications 
determined by the Head of Planning and Economic Development under delegated 
powers since the last meeting of a Plans Subcommittee may be inspected in the 
Members’ Room or at the Planning and Economic Development Information Desk at 
the Civic Offices, Epping. 
 

 9. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   
 

  Exclusion 
To consider whether, under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the 
public and press should be excluded from the meeting for the items of business set 
out below on grounds that they will involve the likely disclosure of exempt information 
as defined in the following paragraph(s) of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Act (as 
amended) or are confidential under Section 100(A)(2): 
 

Agenda Item No Subject Exempt Information 
Paragraph Number 

Nil Nil Nil 
 
The Local Government (Access to Information) (Variation) Order 2006, which came 
into effect on 1 March 2006, requires the Council to consider whether maintaining the 
exemption listed above outweighs the potential public interest in disclosing the 
information. Any member who considers that this test should be applied to any 
currently exempted matter on this agenda should contact the proper officer at least 24 
hours prior to the meeting. 
 
Confidential Items Commencement 
Paragraph 9 of the Council Procedure Rules contained in the Constitution require: 
 
(1) All business of the Council requiring to be transacted in the presence of the 

press and public to be completed by 10.00 p.m. at the latest. 
 
(2) At the time appointed under (1) above, the Chairman shall permit the 

completion of debate on any item still under consideration, and at his or her 
discretion, any other remaining business whereupon the Council shall proceed 
to exclude the public and press. 

 
(3) Any public business remaining to be dealt with shall be deferred until after the 

completion of the private part of the meeting, including items submitted for 
report rather than decision. 

 
Background Papers 
Paragraph 8 of the Access to Information Procedure Rules of the Constitution define 
background papers as being documents relating to the subject matter of the report 
which in the Proper Officer's opinion: 
 
(a) disclose any facts or matters on which the report or an important part of the 



Area Planning Subcommittee West Wednesday, 11 May 2011 
 

5 

report is based;  and 
 
(b) have been relied on to a material extent in preparing the report and does not 

include published works or those which disclose exempt or confidential 
information (as defined in Rule 10) and in respect of executive reports, the 
advice of any political advisor. 

 
Inspection of background papers may be arranged by contacting the officer 
responsible for the item. 
 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees 
 
Are the meetings open to the public? 
 
Yes all our meetings are open for you to attend. Only in special circumstances are 
the public excluded. 
 
When and where is the meeting? 
 
Details of the location, date and time of the meeting are shown at the top of the front 
page of the agenda along with the details of the contact officer and members of the 
Subcommittee.  
 
Can I speak? 
 
If you wish to speak you must register with Democratic Services by 4.00 p.m. on 
the day before the meeting. Ring the number shown on the top of the front page of 
the agenda. Speaking to a Planning Officer will not register you to speak, you must 
register with Democratic Service. Speakers are not permitted on Planning 
Enforcement or legal issues. 
 
Who can speak? 
 
Three classes of speakers are allowed: One objector (maybe on behalf of a group), 
the local Parish or Town Council and the Applicant or his/her agent.  
 
Sometimes members of the Council who have a prejudicial interest and would 
normally withdraw from the meeting might opt to exercise their right to address the 
meeting on an item and then withdraw.  
 
Such members are required to speak from the public seating area and address the 
Sub-Committee before leaving. 
 
What can I say? 
 
You will be allowed to have your say about the application but you must bear in mind 
that you are limited to three minutes. At the discretion of the Chairman, speakers 
may clarify matters relating to their presentation and answer questions from Sub-
Committee members.  
 
If you are not present by the time your item is considered, the Subcommittee will 
determine the application in your absence. 
 
Can I give the Councillors more information about my application or my 
objection? 
 
Yes you can but it must not be presented at the meeting. If you wish to send 
further information to Councillors, their contact details can be obtained through 
Democratic Services or our website www.eppingforestdc.gov.uk. Any information 
sent to Councillors should be copied to the Planning Officer dealing with your 
application. 
 

Agenda Item 2

Page 7



How are the applications considered? 
 
The Subcommittee will consider applications in the agenda order. On each case they 
will listen to an outline of the application by the Planning Officer. They will then hear 
any speakers’ presentations.  
 
The order of speaking will be (1) Objector, (2) Parish/Town Council, then (3) 
Applicant or his/her agent. The Subcommittee will then debate the application and 
vote on either the recommendations of officers in the agenda or a proposal made by 
the Subcommittee. Should the Subcommittee propose to follow a course of action 
different to officer recommendation, they are required to give their reasons for doing 
so. 
 
The Subcommittee cannot grant any application, which is contrary to Local or 
Structure Plan Policy. In this case the application would stand referred to the next 
meeting of the District Development Control Committee. 
 
Further Information? 
 
Can be obtained through Democratic Services or our leaflet ‘Your Choice, Your 
Voice’ 
 

Page 8



1 

EPPING FOREST DISTRICT COUNCIL 
COMMITTEE MINUTES 

 
Committee: Area Planning Subcommittee West Date: Wednesday, 13 April 2011 
    
Place: Council Chamber, Civic Offices, 

High Street, Epping 
Time: 7.30 - 8.25 pm 

  
Members 
Present: 

J Wyatt (Chairman), R Bassett, Mrs P Brooks, D C Johnson, Mrs J Lea, 
Mrs M Sartin, Mrs P Smith, Ms S Stavrou and Mrs E Webster 

  
Other 
Councillors: 

  
  
Apologies: Mrs R Gadsby, J Collier, Ms Y  Knight and W Pryor 
  
Officers 
Present: 

J Godden (Planning Officer), M Jenkins (Democratic Services Assistant) and 
S Mitchell (PR Website Editor) 

  
 
 

89. WEBCASTING INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman made a short address to remind all present that the meeting would be 
broadcast on the Internet, and that the Council had adopted a protocol for the 
webcasting of its meetings. The Sub-Committee noted the Council’s Protocol for 
Webcasting of Council and Other Meetings. 
 

90. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTION  
 
The Chairman welcomed members of the public to the meeting and outlined the 
procedures and arrangements agreed by the Council, to enable persons to address 
the Sub-Committee in relation to the determination of applications for planning 
permission. 
 

91. APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIRMAN  
 
In the absence of the Vice-Chairman, Councillor Mrs S Stavrou was appointed Vice 
Chairman for the duration of the meeting. 
 

92. MINUTES  
 
 RESOLVED: 
 

That the minutes of the meeting of the Sub-Committee held on 23 March 2011 
be taken as read and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.  

 
93. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
(a) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors Mrs M 
Sartin, Mrs S Stavrou and Mrs E Webster declared a personal interest in the 
following items of the agenda by virtue of being members of the Lea Valley Regional 
Park Authority. The Councillors stated that their interests were not prejudicial, and 
that therefore they would remain in the meeting for the duration of the discussions 
and voting thereon: 

Agenda Item 4

Page 9



Area Planning Subcommittee West  Wednesday, 13 April 2011 

2 

 
• EPF/0116/11 Holyfield, Farm, Holyfield, Waltham Abbey EN9 2ED; and 
• EPF/0166/11 Tower Nursery, Netherhall Road, Roydon CM19 5JP 

 
(b) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillors R Bassett 
and J Wyatt declared a personal interest in the following items of the agenda by 
virtue of being deputy members of the Lea Valley Regional Park Authority. The 
Councillors stated that their interests were not prejudicial, and that therefore they 
would remain in the meeting for the duration of the discussions and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/0116/11 Holyfield Farm, Holyfield, Waltham Abbey EN9 2ED; and 
• EPF/0166/11 Tower Nursery, Netherhall Road, Roydon CM19 5JP 

 
(c) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor R Bassett 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of knowing 
the applicant. The Councillor stated that his interest was not prejudicial, and that he 
would remain in the meeting for the duration of the discussion and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/0116/11 Holyfield Farm, Holyfield, Waltham Abbey EN9 2ED 
 
(d) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs J Lea 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of knowing 
the applicant, and by being a member of the Town Council. The Councillor stated 
that her interest was not prejudicial, and that she would remain in the meeting for the 
duration of the discussion and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/0116/11 Holyfield Farm, Holyfield, Waltham Abbey EN9 2ED 
 
(e) Pursuant to the Council’s Code of Member Conduct, Councillor Mrs P Brooks 
declared a personal interest in the following item of the agenda by virtue of being a 
member of Waltham Abbey Town Council Planning Committee. The Councillor stated 
that her interest was not prejudicial and that she would remain in the meeting for the 
duration of the discussion and voting thereon: 
 

• EPF/0166/11 Tower Nursery, Netherhall Road, Roydon CM19 5JP 
 

94. ANY OTHER BUSINESS  
 
It was reported that there was no urgent business for consideration at the meeting. 
 

95. DEVELOPMENT CONTROL  
 
The Sub-Committee considered a schedule of applications for planning permission. 
 
 RESOLVED: 
 
 That, Planning applications numbered 1 – 2 be determined as set out in the 

annex to these minutes. 
 

96. DELEGATED DECISIONS  
 
The Sub-Committee noted that details of planning applications determined by the 
Head of Planning Economic Development under delegated authority since the last 
meeting had been circulated to all members and were available for inspection at the 
Civic Offices. 
 

Page 10



Area Planning Subcommittee West  Wednesday, 13 April 2011 

3 

 
 
 

CHAIRMAN 
 

Page 11



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 12



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0116/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Holyfield Farm  

Holyfield  
Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9 2ED 
 

PARISH: Waltham Abbey 
 

WARD: Waltham Abbey North East 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition and removal of existing masonry and corrugated 
structures. Refurbishment and extension of existing timber 
barns and convert to provide a total of 2no. 2 bedroomed 
dwellings. (Revised application) 
 

DECISION: Referred to District Development Control Committee 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=524726 
 
 
This item was referred to the District Development Control Committee with Members 
recommendation that permission be granted with conditions including retention of trees and 
planting of hedges on the western boundary. 
 

Minute Item 95

Page 5Page 13



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0166/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Tower Nursery 

Netherhall Road 
Roydon 
Harlow 
Essex 
CM19 5JP 
 

PARISH: Roydon 
 

WARD: Roydon 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Demolition of existing loading area canopy, erection of 
extensions to existing packing shed for use as cucumber 
grading room and refrigerated despatch area and construction 
of loading ramp. (Revised application) 
 

DECISION: Granted Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=524899 
 
 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 The external finishes of the development hereby permitted shall match in material, 
colour, style, bonding and texture those of the existing building. 
 

3 The hedging on the western side of the site on the boundary with Netherhall Road 
shall be permanently retained at a height of no less than 2m at all times unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

4 Prior to the first use of the extensions hereby approved, the waiting and turning 
areas for HGV's indicated on drawing SW-911 03:01 shall be clearly denoted on site 
and kept free for use at all times. 
 

5 No development shall take place until details of a satisfactory ground gas 
investigation and risk assessment has been carried out and submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority for approval in order to determine what if any ground gas 
remediation measures may be required or shall specify appropriate ground gas 
mitigation measures to be installed in the building(s) in lieu of any ground gas 
investigation.  
 
The investigations, risk assessment and remediation methods, including remedial 
mitigation measures to be installed in lieu of investigation, shall be carried out or 
assessed in accordance with the guidance contained in BS 9485:2007 "Code of 
practice for the Characterisation and Remediation from Ground Gas in Affected 

Page 6Page 14



Developments." Should the ground gas mitigation measures be installed, it is the 
responsibility of the developer to ensure that any mitigation measures are suitably 
maintained or to pass on this responsibility should ownership or responsibility for the 
buildings be transferred. 
 

 
 

Page 7Page 15



Page 8

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



AREA PLANS SUB-COMMITTEE ‘WEST’ 
11 May 2011 

INDEX OF PLANNING APPLICATIONS 

 
ITEM REFERENCE SITE LOCATION 

OFFICER 
RECOMMENDATION 

PAGE 

1. EPF/2350/09 
Monkswood Nursery, 

Pick Hill, 
Waltham Abbey  

EN9 3LE 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 19 

2. EPF/0306/11 
Woodside, 
Bury Road, 

Sewardstonebury  
E4 7QL 

Grant Permission 
(With Conditions) 29 

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 17



Page 18

This page is intentionally left blank



Report Item No: 1 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/2350/09 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Monkswood Nursery 

Pick Hill 
Waltham Abbey 
Essex 
EN9 3LE 
 

PARISH: Waltham Abbey 
 

WARD: Waltham Abbey North East 
 
Waltham Abbey Paternoster 
 

APPLICANT: Mr Garry Monk and Mrs Donna Robertson  
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Cessation of existing uses and clearance of site, erection of 
two detached houses, garages and domestic stables. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=510950 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 Prior to occupation of either of the dwellings hereby approved, all existing structures, 
hardstanding and materials within the application site shall be removed, and the land 
shall thereafter cease to be used for any commercial activity. 
 

3 The residential curtilages of the proposed new dwellings shall be restricted to those 
indicated on plan Ref: RPEF/08/01. 
 

4 Materials to be used for the external finishes of the proposed development, shall 
match those of the existing building, unless otherwise agreed in writing by the Local 
Planning Authority. 
 

5 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 

6 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 (or of any equivalent provision in any Statutory Instrument 
revoking or re-enacting that Order), the garages hereby approved shall be retained 
so that they are capable of allowing the parking of cars together with any ancillary 
storage in connection with the residential use of the site, and shall at no time be 
converted into a room or used for any other purpose. 
 

Page 19



7 The stables and paddock areas shall only be used as ancillary domestic stables 
incidental to the enjoyment of the proposed dwellinghouses and shall not be 
occupied as units separately from the dwellings. 
 

8 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Class A, B, C, D, E, F shall be undertaken without the prior written 
permission of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

9 No development shall take place, including works of demolition or site clearance, 
until an Arboricultural Implication Assessment and Tree Constraint plan, 
concurrently with the detailed site layout, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. This should be drawn up in accordance with 
BS5837:2005 (Trees in relation to Construction)  
 

10 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 
appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including signs and lighting and functional services above 
and below ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for 
planting or establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules 
of plants, including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where 
appropriate. If within a period of five years from the date of the planting or 
establishment of any tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any 
replacement is removed, uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously 
damaged or defective another tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size 
as that originally planted shall be planted at the same place, unless the Local 
Planning Authority gives its written consent to any variation. 
 

11 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with 
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out 
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural 
Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation. 
 

12 No development shall take place until a Phase 1 Land Contamination investigation 
has been carried out. A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and 
approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before commencement of the 
Phase 1 investigation. The completed Phase 1 report shall be submitted to and 
approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of any 
necessary Phase 2 investigation. The report shall assess potential risks to present 
and proposed humans, property including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland 
and service lines and pipes, adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, 
ecological systems, archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the 
investigation must be conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment 
Agency's "Model Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", 
or any subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
 

Page 20



[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the Phase 2 site investigation condition 
that follows] 
 

13 Should the Phase 1 Land Contamination preliminary risk assessment carried out 
under the above condition identify the presence of potentially unacceptable risks, no 
development shall take place until a Phase 2 site investigation has been carried out. 
A protocol for the investigation shall be submitted to and approved by the Local 
Planning Authority before commencement of the Phase 2 investigation. The 
completed Phase 2 investigation report, together with any necessary outline 
remediation options, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority prior to any redevelopment or remediation works being carried out. The 
report shall assess potential risks to present and proposed humans, property 
including buildings, crops, livestock, pets, woodland and service lines and pipes, 
adjoining land, groundwaters and surface waters, ecological systems, 
archaeological sites and ancient monuments and the investigation must be 
conducted in accordance with DEFRA and the Environment Agency's "Model 
Procedures for the Management of Land Contamination, CLR 11", or any 
subsequent version or additional regulatory guidance.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the remediation scheme condition that 
follows] 
 

14 Should Land Contamination Remediation Works be identified as necessary under 
the above condition, no development shall take place until a detailed remediation 
scheme to bring the site to a condition suitable for the intended use has been 
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall 
be carried out in accordance with the approved remediation scheme unless 
otherwise agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The remediation 
scheme must include all works to be undertaken, proposed remediation objectives 
and remediation criteria, timetable of works and site management procedures and 
any necessary long term maintenance and monitoring programme. The scheme 
must ensure that the site will not qualify as contaminated land under Part 2A of the 
Environmental Protection Act 1990 or any subsequent version, in relation to the 
intended use of the land after remediation.  
[Note: This condition must be formally discharged by the Local Planning Authority 
before the submission of details pursuant to the verification report condition that 
follows] 
 

15 Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation scheme 
and prior to the first use or occupation of the development, a verification report 
(referred to in PPS23 as a Validation Report) that demonstrates the effectiveness of 
the remediation carried out must be produced together with any necessary 
monitoring and maintenance programme and copies of any waste transfer notes 
relating to exported and imported soils shall be submitted to the Local Planning 
Authority for approval. The approved monitoring and maintenance programme shall 
be implemented.   
 

16 In the event that any evidence of potential contamination is found at any time when 
carrying out the approved development that was not previously identified in the 
approved Phase 2 report, it must be reported in writing immediately to the Local 
Planning Authority. An investigation and risk assessment must be undertaken in 
accordance with a methodology previously approved by the Local Planning 
Authority. Following completion of measures identified in the approved remediation 
scheme, a verification report must be prepared, which is subject to the approval in 

Page 21



writing of the Local Planning Authority in accordance with the immediately above 
condition.   
 

17 The development shall be carried out in accordance with the Flood Risk Assessment  
Ref: 10964/EJS/SZ/C2 by John Pryke and Partners dated 24 February 2011, and 
shall be subject to the following mitigation measures: 
1) Provision of compensatory flood storage on the site to a 1 in 100 year + climate 
change standard, on a volume for volume and level for level basis as set out in the 
submitted calculations 104A to 111. The compensatory storage shall be retained for 
the lifetime of the development. 
2) Finished floor levels in the western property shall be set at 27.94m AOD and in 
the eastern property at 28.61m AOD. 
3) Provision of safe routes into and out of the site to an appropriate safe haven. 
 

18 Following completion of the compensatory flood storage works, and prior to 
occupation of the buildings, a topographic survey of ground levels above Ordnance 
Datum as a result of the altering of land levels, shall be submitted to and agreed in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application for development of a significant 
scale (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (c) of the Council’s Delegated Functions) and since 
it is an application contrary to the provisions of the approved Development Plan, and is 
recommended for approval (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (a) of the Council’s Delegated 
Functions). 
  
Description of Proposal: 
 
Consent is being sought for the cessation of the existing uses and clearance of the site and the 
erection of two detached houses with detached garages, and domestic stables. The proposed 
western dwelling would replace an existing residential mobile home and would be a maximum of 
15m in width and 12m in depth with a pitched roof to a ridge height of 8.5m. The proposed eastern 
dwelling would be a new dwelling and would be a maximum width of 18m and maximum depth of 
12m with a pitched roof to a maximum ridge height of 8.7m. Both properties would be set back in 
excess of 20m from the edge of the highway and would have detached triple garages 9.8m in 
width and 7.7m in depth, with dual pitched roofs 5.7m in height. Access to the properties would be 
via new carriage driveways directly off Pick Hill. 
 
Between the two proposed dwellings would be two domestic paddock areas each containing a 
three bay stable building 11m wide and 4.3m deep with pitched roofs to a maximum height of 
4.4m. The remainder of the site (the area to the rear), would be left as open land to allow access 
to Cobbins Brook and would be accessed by the existing site access with a driveway leading 
between the eastern house and its associated paddock. Whilst this area would not be used for any 
purpose it would still be subject to a landscaping scheme. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site comprises a 1.5 hectare site located on the northern side of Pick Hill (along 
the unmade section of the road) which contains a former horticultural nursery (with a large 
expanse of derelict glasshouse), a mobile home that has become a permanent dwelling, a 
paddock area, and a commercial/scrap yard to the rear of the site. To the immediate east of the 
site is a further large scrap yard and to the immediate west is a single detached dwelling. The site 
is bordered on the north by Cobbins Brook and to the south by Pick Hill (road), with agricultural 
fields beyond. The entire site is located within the Metropolitan Green Belt, Environment Agency 

Page 22



Floodzones 2 and 3, an EFDC flood risk assessment zone, and an E13 glasshouse area (although 
designated for ‘potential de-designation’). 
 
Relevant History: 
 
WHX/0177/64 - Stationing of caravan – approved/conditions (every year between 1964 and 1973) 
EPF/1308/75 - Renewal of temporary permission for the stationing of a mobile home for a further 
period – approved/conditions 24/10/75 
EPF/1578/80 - Renewal of temporary permission for mobile home for a further period – 
approved/conditions 30/01/81 
EPF/0114/84 - Retention of mobile home for a further period – approved/conditions 16/03/84 
EPF/0739/85 - Change of use to garden centre/manufacture of paving slabs and garden 
ornaments – refused 12/08/85 
EPF/0760/87 - Retention of mobile home for a further period – approved/conditions 31/07/87 
EPF/0979/90 - Retention of mobile home for further three year period – approved/conditions 
17/09/90 
EPF/0926/93 - Retention of mobile home for further period – approved/conditions 06/01/94 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1 - Achieving sustainable development bbjectives 
CP2  - Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
CP3 - New development 
GB2A - Development in the Green Belt 
GB15A - Replacement dwellings 
E13B - Protection of glasshouse areas 
E13C - Prevention of dereliction of new glasshouse sites 
DBE1 - Design of new buildings 
DBE2 - Effect on neighbouring properties 
DBE4 - Design in the Green Belt 
DBE8 - Private amenity space 
DBE9 - Loss of amenity 
LL1 - Rural landscape 
LL2 - Inappropriate rural development 
LL11 - Landscape schemes 
RST4 - Horse keeping 
U2A - Development in flood risk areas 
U2B - Flood risk assessment zones 
U3A - Catchment effects 
ST1 - Location of development 
ST4 - Road safety 
ST6 - Vehicle parking 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
5 neighbours were consulted and a Site Notice was displayed on 17th February 2010. 
 
TOWN COUNCIL – No objection subject to it meeting special circumstances. 
 
CITY OF LONDON – Object as this would constitute inappropriate development within the Green 
Belt and as this will set a precedent for further similar developments on vacant glasshouse sites. 
 
PATERNOSTER NORTH RESIDENTS ASSOCIATION – Object as this is against Green Belt 
policy and has no very special circumstances, it would set a dangerous precedent for similar 

Page 23



development on other glasshouse sites, there is inadequate infrastructure in Waltham Abbey to 
support further residential development and the site is in an unsustainable location. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
The application site is situated within the Metropolitan Green Belt. PPG2 and Local Plan policy 
GB2A states that the erection of new dwellings constitutes ‘inappropriate development’ unless they 
are for agricultural and forestry workers or are limited affordable housing for local community 
needs. Furthermore, whilst replacement dwellings are not considered as ‘inappropriate 
development’, this is only “providing the new dwelling is not materially larger than the dwelling it 
replaces”. The proposed development would result in the erection of one brand new open market 
dwelling and one replacement dwelling materially larger than that which it replaces, and therefore 
the proposal constitutes inappropriate development which, by definition, is harmful to the Green 
Belt. 
 
Whilst the development constitutes inappropriate development, very special circumstances can be 
argued to justify such development, however these have to be sufficient to clearly outweigh the 
harm from inappropriate development, as well as any other harm caused. In this instance the other 
harm from this development is that it is located within an E13 glasshouse area and in an 
unsustainable area. 
 
Local Plan policy E13B deals with protection of E13 glasshouse areas, and states that “the Council 
will refuse any application that it considers is likely to: (i) undermine its policy approach of 
concentrating glasshouses in clusters to minimise damage to visual amenity and loss of the 
openness of the Green Belt; and/or (ii) harm the future vitality and/or viability of the Lea Valley 
glasshouse industry”. Furthermore policy E13C (which generally relates to schemes for new or 
replacement glasshouses within E13 areas) states that “under-used or derelict glasshouses and 
other buildings including packhouses will not be considered suitable sites for the introduction of 
non-agricultural uses, at least until a future review of the plan”. Whilst the application site is within 
an E13 area designated as being ‘potential de-designated’ (which is an ‘early warning’ for sites 
that are derelict or in decline that, unless revitalised, will be de-designated within the next plan 
review), this does not at this time remove the E13 designation and therefore the proposal is 
contrary to this policy. However, the clear intention to de-designate the site during the next Local 
Plan review is a material consideration and therefore has some bearing on this application. 
 
The site’s location, lack of footway and limited access to public transport and local facilities means 
that the site clearly constitutes an ‘unsustainable location’. Although there are some time immune 
commercial uses on the site (which would constitute Previously Developed Land), the majority of 
the site has a lawful horticultural (agricultural) use, paddock, or time immune residential use 
(which, with the exception of a ‘replacement dwelling’, would not constitute Previously Developed 
Land or have any presumption for residential development). Notwithstanding this, the level of harm 
that would result from one additional house on this site would not be detrimental enough in itself to 
warrant refusal on sustainability grounds. 
 
The applicant states that “the environmental and visual benefits gained from these proposals 
provide the ‘very special circumstances’ needed to support the limited amount of inappropriate 
development”. In particular the arguments put forward are the following: 

• The proposal would put an end to the unauthorised and unrestricted uses to the rear of the 
site. 

• The use of the site for residential purposes would reduce the visual harm, impact on 
neighbours, and traffic movements (including large HGV’s). 

• The removal of the derelict glasshouses and replacement with well designed dwellings, 
outbuildings and stables and a high level of landscaping would improve the openness and 
visual appearance of the site. 

Page 24



• The proposed built form would result in a total of 554 sq. m., which is an 86.15% decrease 
from the existing 4000 sq. m. 

• The scheme would be subject to a comprehensive Flood Risk Assessment, which would 
improve the overall drainage and off-site flood risks resulting from the site. 

• The development would result in a limited level of inappropriate development as one 
dwelling would constitute a replacement house (albeit materially larger than that which it 
replaces) and the remainder of the site would be for domestic horse keeping, which is 
recognised as being acceptable within rural areas such as this. 

 
PPG2 clearly states that “the quality of the landscape is not relevant to the inclusion of land within 
Green Belt or to its continued protection. The purposes of including land in Green Belts are of 
paramount importance to their continued protection, and should take precedence over the land 
use objectives”. Whilst it is accepted that the removal of enforcement exempt non-conforming uses 
on the site would be beneficial to the area, there has been no exploration or evidence provided to 
show that this could not be achieved through the redevelopment of the site for ‘not inappropriate 
development’ (i.e. new/replacement horticultural/agricultural use, outdoor sport or recreation, etc.). 
 
Notwithstanding the above, the redevelopment of this site for the proposed scheme was originally 
explored with the Local Planning Authority in November 2007, whereby the response from the 
head of Planning Enforcement stated: 
 

“Since it would be inappropriate development in the Green Belt Officer support would only 
be given if very special circumstances are demonstrated. Such circumstances would not 
solely be on the basis of the removal of extensive derelict glasshouses. However, I am 
aware there are unrelated inappropriate uses taking place on the site that are time immune 
from enforcement action and your client owns buildings outside the nursery site on the 
opposite side of Pick Hill and in an adjacent field. The inappropriate uses include the open 
storage of vehicles, building materials and scaffolding together with the use of land as a 
builders depot. These uses primarily take place to the rear of the existing glasshouses. I 
am also aware that neighbouring land to the east is lawfully used as a depot for a 
demolition contractors and its appearance is harmful to the visual amenities of the Green 
Belt. 
 
I therefore advise that should a proposal for the site include the removal of all the 
inappropriate uses on the site together with the glasshouses and all other buildings 
adjacent to the site that are in your clients ownership, this would form the basis for 
demonstrating very special circumstances. The nature of the proposal is also important and 
it should achieve significant benefits to and enhancement of the openness and visual 
amenities of the Green Belt”. 

 
The application site constitutes all land within the applicant’s ownership (according to the 
submitted location plan), and therefore proposes the removal of all the unlawful and inappropriate 
uses and buildings on the site (as well as those considered appropriate) in line with the previous 
advice given, however there is no proposal to remove “buildings outside the nursery site on the 
opposite side of Pick Hill and in an adjacent field”. However, as no blue line showing ‘other land 
within the applicant’s ownership’ has been indicated on the location plan, no such demolition can 
be sought as part of this application. Furthermore, the amount of inappropriate built form proposed 
(the one new dwelling and enlargement of the replacement dwelling) and additional landscaping 
and open grassed areas (paddocks) is also in line with the previous advice as it would ‘enhance 
the openness and visual amenities of the Green Belt’ as suggested by the previous head of 
Planning Enforcement. 
 
Due to the above, whilst the removal of glasshouses and horticultural uses (regardless of their 
state of repair or vacancy of such) in itself would not constitute ‘very special circumstances’, it is 

Page 25



considered that the previously highlighted circumstances (i.e. removal of the unauthorised and 
unrestricted use, demolition of all derelict buildings, and improvement to the openness and visual 
amenities of the Green Belt) have been put forward and may be considered, on balance, enough 
to outweigh the harm from the new dwelling and for a replacement dwelling materially larger than 
that which it replaces. 
 
Whilst it would be preferable to see a more modest new dwelling on the site (and a replacement 
dwelling not materially larger than the existing property) it is stated by the applicant that “to enable 
the necessary funding it has been necessary to develop properties of this size and 
accommodation level”. Although no documentation or viability report has been submitted to 
support this, the proposed dwellings are not unusually large for this type of location and there are 
known economic factors on the site (i.e. the need to decontaminate the site, the production and 
implementation of the Flood Risk Assessment, etc.). 
 
Highways/Parking 
 
The application site is located on the unmade section of Pick Hill (and the applicant would need to 
obtain consent to use this private road for access to the proposal, however this is not a planning 
consideration) and proposes two additional carriage driveways. Whilst the site is largely vacant 
now, if fully functional as a horticultural nursery, single dwelling, paddock area, and time immune 
commercial depot the level of traffic movement down this narrow unmade road would be 
considerably higher and more harmful than the use of the site for two dwellings. Complaints have 
previously been received from residents of Pick Hill (the public highway section) about HGV traffic 
movements emanating from this area and the reinstatement of the current lawful uses on the site 
would further exacerbate this. As such it is considered that the introduction of one further dwelling 
(and significant enlargement of the proposed replacement dwelling) would improve the highway 
safety and level of traffic movements on Pick Hill. 
 
Given the unsustainable location of the development maximum parking standards would be 
required. The proposed dwellings would both have detached three bay garage buildings with plenty 
of space within the front garden for additional/visitor parking and manoeuvrability space. As such 
the proposed parking provision is considered acceptable. 
 
Overall Design 
 
Whilst the proposed dwellings are fairly substantial in size, as previously stated these dwellings 
have been designed as such to ensure that the development is economically viable for the owner. 
Although relatively large the dwellings are of a fairly standard design that is not unacceptable to 
the area. The proposed detached garages and stable buildings are similarly considered 
acceptable in design and would be an improvement over the current dilapidated site, unsightly 
mobile home and the unauthorised (but time immune) depot. 
 
Landscaping 
 
There are no trees within the central area of the site as this is where the redundant glasshouses 
and builder’s depot stand. The main tree cover on site is to the rear along Cobbins Brook, which 
may need to be protected and retained (subject to a more detailed tree survey that can be sought 
and agreed by condition). Furthermore, as stated within the original recommendations from the 
head of Planning Enforcement, a robust and beneficial landscaping scheme will be required for the 
site to improve the overall appearance and character of the area. Again this can be sought be 
condition. 
 
 

Page 26



Other Considerations 
 
The site lies within Environment Agency Floodzones 2 and 3 and an EFDC flood risk assessment 
zone. A Flood Risk Assessment was submitted with the application, and has been subject to in-
depth discussions and negotiations between the applicant and the Environment Agency (which has 
led to the delay in deciding the application). The latest Flood Risk Assessment (dated February 
2011) is now considered sufficient and, subject to this being implemented, along with other 
measures controlled by condition, the development is now considered acceptable in terms of flood 
risk.  
 
Due to its former use as a horticultural nursery and builder’s yard, and due to the presence of 
made ground and adjacent demolition contractors yard, the site is potentially contaminated. 
Therefore a full contaminated land investigation would be required. 
 
Conclusion: 
 
As outlined above, the erection of a new dwelling and replacement of the existing mobile home 
with a house “materially larger than the dwelling it replaces” is considered to constitute 
‘inappropriate development’, and is therefore harmful to the Green Belt. Further to the ‘in principal’ 
harm, the redevelopment of the site would also result in the loss of glasshouses within an E13 site 
(albeit one designated for ‘potential de-designation’), and would introduce further housing within an 
unsustainable location. 
 
Although no evidence has been produced as to why the site could not be successfully redeveloped 
for a more appropriate Green Belt use or to justify the economic need to provide houses of this 
scale, the arguments put forward were previously explored with Planning Services and it was 
recommended that the proposal “would form the basis for demonstrating very special 
circumstances”. As such it is considered that, on balance, the removal of the unauthorised and 
unrestricted depot to the rear of the site, the visual improvements resulting from the redevelopment 
of the redundant glasshouse area, and the resultant additional landscaping and flood alleviation 
works would constitute very special circumstances in this instance to outweigh the identified harm 
from this development. Therefore the proposed development is recommended for approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 

Page 27



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee West 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

1 
Application Number: EPF/2350/09 
Site Name: Monkswood Nursery, Pick Hill 

Waltham Abbey, EN9 3LE 
Scale of Plot: 1/2500 

Page 28



Report Item No: 2 
 
APPLICATION No: EPF/0306/11 

 
SITE ADDRESS: Woodside  

Bury Road  
Sewardstonebury  
E4 7QL 
 

PARISH: Waltham Abbey 
 

WARD: Waltham Abbey High Beach 
 

APPLICANT: Mr G Stone 
 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSAL: Existing garage and swimming pool to be demolished and 
replaced with new detached dwelling. 
 

RECOMMENDED DECISION: Grant Permission (With Conditions) 
 

 
Click on the link below to view related plans and documents for this case: 
http://planpub.eppingforestdc.gov.uk/AniteIM.websearch/ExternalEntryPoint.aspx?SEARCH_TYPE=1&DOC_CLASS_CODE=PL&FOLDER1_REF=525511 
 
CONDITIONS  
 

1 The development hereby permitted must be begun not later than the expiration of 
three years beginning with the date of this notice. 
 

2 No development shall have taken place until details of the types and colours of the 
external finishes have been submitted to and approved by the Local Planning 
Authority in writing prior to the commencement of the development. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such approved details. 
 

3 No development shall take place until details of foul and surface water disposal have 
been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The 
development shall be implemented in accordance with such agreed details. 
 

4 Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning General Permitted 
Development Order 1995 as amended (or any other order revoking, further 
amending or re-enacting that order) no development generally permitted by virtue of 
Part 1, Class A, B, D and E shall be undertaken without the prior written permission 
of the Local Planning Authority. 
 

5 No development shall take place, including works of demolition or site clearance, 
until an Arboricultural Implication Assessment and Tree Constraint plan, 
concurrently with the detailed site layout, has been submitted to and approved in 
writing by the Local Planning Authority. This should be drawn up in accordance with 
BS5837:2005 (Trees in relation to Construction)  
 

6 No development shall take place, including site clearance or other preparatory work, 
until full details of both hard and soft landscape works (including tree planting) and 
implementation programme (linked to the development schedule) have been 
submitted to an approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. These works 
shall be carried out as approved. The hard landscaping details shall include, as 

Page 29



appropriate, and in addition to details of existing features to be retained: proposed 
finished levels or contours; means of enclosure; car parking layouts; other minor 
artefacts and structures, including lighting and functional services above and below 
ground. The details of soft landscape works shall include plans for planting or 
establishment by any means and full written specifications and schedules of plants, 
including species, plant sizes and proposed numbers /densities where appropriate. If 
within a period of five years from the date of the planting or establishment of any 
tree, or shrub or plant, that tree, shrub, or plant or any replacement is removed, 
uprooted or destroyed or dies or becomes seriously damaged or defective another 
tree or shrub, or plant of the same species and size as that originally planted shall 
be planted at the same place, unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written 
consent to any variation. 
 

7 No development, including works of demolition or site clearance, shall take place 
until a Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural Method Statement in accordance with 
BS:5837:2005 (Trees in relation to construction) has been submitted to the Local 
Planning Authority and approved in writing. The development shall be carried out 
only in accordance with the approved Tree Protection Plan and Arboricultural 
Method Statement unless the Local Planning Authority gives its written consent to 
any variation. 
 

8 The parking area shown on the approved plan shall be provided prior to the first 
occupation of the development and shall be retained free of obstruction for the 
parking of residents and visitors vehicles. 
 

 
This application is before this Committee since it is an application that is considered by the 
Director of Planning and Economic Development as appropriate to be presented for a Committee 
decision (Pursuant to Section CL56, Schedule A (k) of the Council’s Delegated Functions). 
 
Description of Proposal: 
 
Consent is being sought for the demolition of an existing garage and removal of a swimming pool 
and the erection of a new detached dwelling. The dwelling would be a 4 bed detached property 
that would have a maximum depth of 10.7m and maximum width of 10.4m. The dwelling would 
have a predominantly gable ended pitched roof, although would incorporate a half hip on the 
southern flank, with a ridge height of 9.1m. Access to the dwelling would be directly off of Bury 
Road and would utilise the existing access to Woodside. A previous access point is proposed to 
be reopened to serve the existing dwelling. 
 
Description of Site: 
 
The application site consists of the side garden of Woodside, Bury Road, which sits in a plot 
considerably wider than surrounding properties. Currently the site contains a detached garage 
building and uncovered swimming pool. The site is located on the corner of Bury Road and 
Woodman Lane, which is a private road serving a number of houses. The site is located within the 
Metropolitan Green Belt. 
 
Relevant History: 
 
EPF/1206/80 - Outline Application for bungalow within the curtilage of Woodside (access from 
Woodman Lane) – refused 20/10/80 (appeal dismissed 12/08/81) 
EPF/0328/00 - Erection of detached dwelling house and detached garage – refused 03/07/00 

Page 30



EPF/1826/00 - Erection of detached dwelling house and detached garage (revised scheme) – 
refused 22/12/00 (appeal dismissed 05/06/01) 
 
Policies Applied: 
 
CP1 – Achieving sustainable development objectives 
CP2 – Protecting the quality of the rural and built environment 
GB2A – Development in the Green Belt 
DBE1 – Design of new buildings 
DBE2 – Effect on neighbouring properties 
DBE4 – Design in the Green Belt 
DBE8 – Private amenity space 
DBE9 – Loss of amenity 
LL3 – Edge of settlement 
LL10 – Adequacy of provision for landscape retention 
LL11 – Landscaping schemes 
ST1 – Location of development 
ST4 – Road safety 
ST6 – Vehicle parking 
 
Summary of Representations: 
 
10 neighbouring residents were consulted. 
 
TOWN COUNCIL – No objection (verbal confirmation as response not received). 
 
CITY OF LONDON – Object as this development would create an infill when viewed from front and 
side elevations, detracting from the openness of the Green Belt. There appear to be no very 
special circumstances to justify the development. 
 
SARNIA, BURY ROAD – No objection as the proposed dwelling will fit in well with the surrounding 
buildings and would look better than the existing garage. 
 
TEWKESBURY, WOODMAN LANE – Support the application as this removes a rather ugly 
garage and allows a new attractive house to be built, enhancing the quality of Bury Road. 
 
BRANDON & FOUR, WOODMAN LANE (same objector) – Object as this is for an infill in the 
Green Belt and as it would be out of character and detrimental to the amenities of this rural area. 
This has previously been refused permission for new dwellings on this site and approval would set 
a precedent for other similar development in the locality. 
 
Issues and Considerations: 
 
Green Belt 
 
The general presumption in relation to the erection of new dwellings within the Green Belt is that 
they constitute inappropriate development. However there are some exemptions to this, such as 
the development of ‘rural exception sites’ relating to affordable housing, or dwellings erected 
specifically for agricultural, horticultural or forestry workers. A further exception is stated within 
PPG2 (Green Belts) Para. 3.4 which states that “the construction of new buildings inside a Green 
Belt is inappropriate unless it is for the following purposes: [4th bullet point] limited infilling in 
existing villages (under the circumstances described in the box following paragraph 2.11”. The box 
referred to lays out the circumstances of such ‘infill development’ and states “if infilling only is 
proposed, the village should either be “washed over” and listed in the development plan or should 
be inset (that is, excluded from the Green Belt). The local plan should include policies to ensure 

Page 31



that any infill does not have an adverse effect on the character of the village concerned. If the 
village is washed over, the local plan may need to define infill boundaries to avoid dispute over 
whether particular sites are covered by infill policies”. 
 
With regards to this application, the proposed site is the side garden of Woodside, Bury Road and 
is surrounded to the north, east, south and west by residential properties. Whilst the site is located 
within the village of Sewardstonebury, which is completely ‘washed over’ by the Green Belt, this 
location has not been designated as being suitable for infilling, nor does the Local Plan have a 
specific policy relating to infill development. As such the proposed development does not fall within 
the description of “limited infilling in existing villages” as described in PPG2 and therefore 
constitutes inappropriate development that, by definition, is harmful to the Green Belt. This view is 
consistent with the previous history to the site, and the Planning Inspector previously stated (in 
relation to EPF/1826/00) that “no evidence to show that Sewardstonebury is listed in the adopted 
Local Plan as being suitable for limited infilling along the lines put forward in PPG2. I therefore 
agree with the Council that the development would constitute inappropriate development in the 
Green Belt”, and “this corner should not, therefore, be treated as a genuine infill for limited 
infilling”. 
 
It is accepted within PPG2 however that inappropriate development can be considered acceptable 
within the Green Belt provided there are very special circumstances sufficient to outweigh the 
harm caused by this. Although it was considered within the previous applications that “there are, 
however, no very special circumstances which outweigh the general presumption against 
inappropriate development in the Green Belt”, these applications were decided some ten years 
ago, and therefore the circumstances must be reassessed. 
 
Although reference was made to historic infill development within Sewardstonebury as part of the 
previous applications for this site, which the Planning Inspector previously considered “sets no 
precedent for the grant of planning permission for the case in hand”, there has been considerable 
further development within the locality since this time. 
 
Although replacement housing is not considered inappropriate development within the Green Belt, 
this is only “providing the new dwelling is not materially larger than the dwelling it replaces”. 
Notwithstanding this, several considerably larger replacement houses have been approved (and 
constructed) within Sewardstonebury, including Nou Camp, Bury Road (2003), Carrols Farm, Bury 
Road (2010), Oaktrees, Western Lane (2010) and Bury Farm, Bury Road (2010). Furthermore, 
additions larger than those that would constitute ‘limited extension’ have been approved on several 
properties within Sewardstonebury, including Hill Top, Bury Road (2008) and Orchard House, Bury 
Road (2010). Of particular importance however is that a new dwelling was approved at Committee 
within a former ménage adjacent to San Segal, Farm End in 2009/2010. It was considered in this 
instance that given “its location on the edge of the built up settlement of Sewardstonebury and 
previously approved new dwelling on the adjacent Bury Farm, it is considered that on balance the 
very special circumstances of this proposal are sufficient to outweigh the harm to the Green Belt”. 
It was similarly noted within this application that the new house adjacent to San Segal would 
“logically ‘round-off’ this section of the village”. 
 
This recent planning consent, and the relaxation of the ‘replacement dwellings’ and ‘limited 
extension’ policies within Sewardstonebury, are material planning considerations and have a 
bearing on this proposal. As such, whilst it was previously concluded that this plot would not be 
suitable for infilling, it is now considered that, due to the level of development approved in the 
locality since this time and recently approved new dwelling at San Segal, the principal of further 
residential development in this location (subject to all other planning considerations) may be 
acceptable. Given that the proposed dwelling would continue the existing built form of Bury Road, 
would be surrounded on all four sides by existing residential properties, and would not extend the 
village into the surrounding open Green Belt, it is considered that the particular special 

Page 32



circumstances of this site would be sufficient to outweigh the principal harm resulting from this 
development. 
 
Design and appearance 
 
Policies CP2, DBE1 and DBE4 of the Epping Forest District Local Plan seek to ensure that new 
development is satisfactorily located and is of a high standard of design and layout. Furthermore, 
the appearance of new developments should be compatible with the character of the surrounding 
area. 
 
The proposed dwelling would be a fairly interesting and acceptably designed property that would 
be smaller, but not disproportionately so, than Woodside. The surrounding properties in Bury Road 
and Woodman Lane (and in the whole of Sewardstonebury) vary greatly in their design and size, 
and due to this it is not considered that the proposed dwelling would be detrimental to the overall 
character or appearance of the area. 
 
Amenity considerations 
 
The dwelling would retain a sufficient separation from Woodside, and would be a considerable 
distance from other neighbouring properties. As such there would be no impact on visual amenity, 
privacy, or light levels reaching neighbouring properties. Whilst an additional dwelling would result 
in intensification of use of the site and further vehicle movements, the impact would not be unduly 
detrimental as to result in noise or any other form of nuisance to surrounding residents. 
 
There is sufficient private amenity space to serve the proposed new dwelling, and adequate space 
remaining to serve the occupiers of Woodside. These areas comply with the requirements as laid 
out in DBE8 and the Essex Design Guide. 
 
Highways/Parking 
 
The new dwelling proposes to utilise the existing vehicle access of Woodside, with the existing 
property reopening and utilising an unused crossover from Bury Road. Given the presence of 
several vehicle crossovers onto Bury Road and the relatively minor nature of this highway the 
reinstatement of this access would be considered acceptable. 
 
Whilst the application site is not considered a sustainable location, as Sewardstonebury is not 
particularly well served by public transport or local facilities, the site is within an existing built up 
enclave and as such the lack of sustainable transport would be difficult to justify. Notwithstanding 
this, due to the problems with public transport, maximum parking standards should be sought on 
this site. The application site would therefore require at least 2 off-street parking spaces for the 
dwelling, which would be easily accommodated within the front garden. The front garden area 
would also allow for adequate space for visitor parking and to turn a vehicle so that cars could 
enter and exit the site in forward gear. Similarly adequate space would remain to serve Woodside 
and allow for a similar level of parking and manoeuvrability space. 
 
Landscaping 
 
There are no preserved trees located on the site and whilst many existing trees are present, none 
of these are considered suitable for protection. However, the conifer/laurel screen alongside 
Woodman Lane acts as a good screening and is predominantly shown to be retained. To ensure 
this (and other trees shown to be retained) are kept and protected during construction, relevant 
tree protection conditions are required. Furthermore a condition requiring details of hard and soft 
landscaping to be submitted and agreed should be added. 
 
 

Page 33



Conclusion: 
 
Due to the particular circumstances of this development, primarily its location within the built up 
settlement of Sewardstonebury and the recently approved developments within the locality, it is 
considered that on balance the very special circumstances of this proposal are sufficient to 
outweigh the harm to the Green Belt. Due to this it is considered that the proposed development 
generally complies with all relevant Local Plan policies and is therefore recommended for 
approval. 
 
 
 
Should you wish to discuss the contents of this report item please use the following 
contact details by 2pm on the day of the meeting at the latest: 
 
Planning Application Case Officer: Graham Courtney 
Direct Line Telephone Number: 01992 564228 
 
or if no direct contact can be made please email:   contactplanning@eppingforestdc.gov.uk  
 
 
 
 

Page 34



 
 
123 

 
 
 

 
  

 

 
 

EFDC 

EFDC 

Epping Forest District Council 
 

Area Planning Sub-Committee West 

The material contained in this plot has been 
reproduced from an Ordnance Survey map 
with the permission of the Controller of Her 
Majesty's Stationery. (c) Crown Copyright. 
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown 
Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil 
proceedings.  
 
EFDC licence No.100018534 

Agenda Item 
Number: 

2 
Application Number: EPF/0306/11 
Site Name: Woodside, Bury Road  

Sewardstonebury, E4 7QL 
Scale of Plot: 1/1250 

Page 35



Page 36

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Advice to Public and Speakers at Council Planning Subcommittees
	4 Minutes
	7 Development Control
	West 11 May 2011


